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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Wednesday, 7 August 2019 4:53 PM
To: Jason Ford
Subject: RE: G'Day from ILSC Brisbane

Jason,  
 
Thanks for sending me the Project brief etc.   Can you confirm the dates that Sydney Uni will be staying at Merriman. 
 
Cheers 
 
Richard 
 

From: Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 7 August 2019 4:07 PM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: G'Day from ILSC Brisbane 
 
Hi Richard  
                           
 
Thanks for today I really appreciate you taking the time to chat.  
 
I have attached the project brief and engagement model document for Murdi Paaki and university of Sydney as I 
said which gives a brief description of project between Ngemba CWP and University of Sydney.  
 
 
Regards  
 
Jason Ford 
 
 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 7 August 2019 3:15 PM 
To: Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au> 
Subject: G'Day from ILSC Brisbane 
 
Hi Jason, 
 
Nice chatting with you today.   
 
If you could send me the brief for the old age care trip conducted by University of Sydney Ill seek out the 
permissions required. 
 
Regards 
 

Richard Johnston | Project Advisor | Indigenous Land and Sea Corporation 
Brisbane Office | www.ilsc.gov.au  
P: 07 3854 4668 | M: 0498 101 977 |E: Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au | Freecall: 1800 818 490 
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The ILSC acknowledges the Traditional Owners of Country throughout Australia and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them 
and their cultures, and to the Elders both past and present. 
 
 

*** IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ ***  
This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and may contain information protected by law 
from disclosure. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete 
this email from your system. No warranty is given that this email or files, if attached to this email, are free 
from computer viruses or other defects. They are provided on the basis the user assumes all responsibility 
for loss, damage or consequence resulting directly or indirectly from their use, whether caused by the 
negligence of the sender or not 
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Wednesday, 21 August 2019 5:41 PM
To: Jason Ford
Subject: Sydney University visit - Merriman station

Jason,  
 
Can you give me some more details regarding the Sydney University visit to Merriman station.  Details that we 
require are: 
 

A. Confirmed dates.   
B. Numbers of attendees and from which organisation 
C. Number of vehicles  
D. Required access:  Building, gates, paddocks,  area etc. 
E. Are they going to use the kitchen facility? 
F. Who is taking responsibility for the public liability? 
G. What are the details of the public liability policy? 
H. What type of activates will be conducted on Merriman? 
I. Who will take responsibility for any damages to the facility and equipment 
J. Other requirements 

 
Keep in mind that the facility rarely gets used these days so you may need to have someone come early to make 
sure that the required rooms are clean and ready to use (they may be very dusty).  If early access is required ILSC 
can arrange this via the temporary caretaker. 
 
The facilities must be cleaned after they are used.   
 
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
Sent: Friday, 27 September 2019 10:45 AM
To: Jason Ford; Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au
Subject: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement DRAFT
Attachments: Overseer_MerrimanStation_DutyStatement_Sep2019 v1.5 (003).docx

Jason and Grace, 
 
Here is the Duty Statement for the Merriman Caretaker/Maintenance Officer position.  Please read it and provide 
feedback with track changes if necessary.  It would be great to start advertising next week so that we can conduct 
interviews and selection by the end of November.  Either Chris or myself will come out to sit on the selection panel 
(most likely me).  Please feel free to contact me anytime if you have any concerns. 
 
Regards 

Richard Johnston | Project Advisor | Indigenous Land and Sea Corporation 
Brisbane Office  |  www.ilsc.gov.au  
P: 07 3854 4668 | M: 0498 101 977 | E: Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au | Freecall: 1800 818 490 

    

 
 

 
The ILSC acknowledges the Traditional Owners of Country throughout Australia and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them 
and their cultures, and to the Elders both past and present. 

4



1

Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Monday, 30 September 2019 1:31 PM
To: Jason Ford; Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement DRAFT
Attachments: Overseer_MerrimanStation_DutyStatement_Sep2019 v1.6.docx

Grace and Jason, 
 
Thank you for your input regarding the duty statement.  I’ve made the amendments as per our conversation.  Please 
read version 1.6, it should reflect our consensus on not restricting applicants who have low LLN.   
 
If you are happy with the duty statement please let me know before you send it to your contacts.  I will contact the 
local employment agency and/or newspaper etc. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
   
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Friday, 27 September 2019 10:45 AM 
To: 'Jason Ford' <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>; 'Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au' <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
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

From: Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au>
Sent: Friday, 3 July 2020 10:16 AM
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Subject: RE: Merriman Shearing Centre Accommodation

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Thanks Richard, I am also having conversations with Aboriginal Affairs NSW regarding the Aboriginal Women’s 
conference we could like to hold at Merriman. It’s been delayed due to COVID and if everything goes ok we will 
probably go ahead with it later in the year. We are still doing the planning for it, I will keep you updated.  I’ve also 
had a conversation with Tracy Shillingsworth the CEO of REDI.E who is eager to develop a partnership with us for a 
Food Security Project and training at Merriman for their participants. They have approximately 250 clients. 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) 
Sent: Thursday, 2 July 2020 7:54 PM 
To: Grace Gordon 
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC) 
Subject: RE: Merriman Shearing Centre Accommodation 
 
Hello Grace, 
 
Its nice to hear from you, I hope all is well.  I will discuss this with Chris and let you know. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 

From: Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au>  
Sent: Thursday, 2 July 2020 3:49 PM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Merriman Shearing Centre Accommodation 
 
Good afternoon Richard forwarding for your information and comment. Let me know what you think. 
  
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
  

From: Grace Gordon 
Sent: Wednesday, 1 July 2020 1:15 PM 
To: Jford3757 
Subject: FW: Merriman Shearing Centre Accommodation 
  
  
fyi 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
  

From: Jackie for Dr Jeffery Hughes 
Sent: Wednesday, 1 July 2020 12:08 PM 
To: Grace Gordon 
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Cc: Jeff&Dennise Hughes 
Subject: Merriman Shearing Centre Accommodation 
  
Grace, I was with the Sydney University group that visited Brewarrina last September. 
  
We stayed at the Merriman Shearing Quarters. A group of travellers willing to pay for accommodation 
have asked me if I  
  
knew who to ask about Merriman. Was wondering if you have any idea if it is open to paying guests ? 
  
  
Dennise Terry 
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Wednesday, 2 October 2019 11:15 AM
To: Grace Gordon; Jason Ford
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement DRAFT

Jason, Grace, 
 
I’ve just realised that I suggested the last week in November for interviews.  I actually mean the last week in 
October with an appointment made soon after that.  I think that this is the earliest possible timeframe that we can 
expect. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard  
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Tuesday, 1 October 2019 12:16 PM 
To: 'Grace Gordon' <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au>; 'Jason Ford' <jason.ford@mpra.com.au> 
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement DRAFT 
 
Thank Grace, 
 
One thing I failed to add was a closing date.  Are you happy with a closing date of 18/10/19?  This will give applicants 
2.5 weeks to apply.  We will be able to conduct interviews in the last week of November, with the new caretaker 
appointed ASAP after that (hopefully before christmans). 
 
If you agree with 18/10 as the closing date please send out the attached duty statement which has this date on it. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
  
 

From: Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 1 October 2019 8:47 AM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement DRAFT 
 
Thanks Richard 
It’s all good to go with the amendments that have been made. 
  
Regards Grace 
  
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
  

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) 
Sent: Monday, 30 September 2019 1:31 PM 
To: Jason Ford; Grace Gordon 
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
Sent: Wednesday, 2 October 2019 11:36 AM
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement DRAFT

Hi Richard  
 
 
That sounds fine from my end  will just need confirmation from Grace. 
 
 
 
Jason Ford  
0455367680 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 2 October 2019 11:15 AM 
To: Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au>; Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au> 
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
This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and may contain information protected by law from 
disclosure. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete this email 
from your system. No warranty is given that this email or files, if attached to this email, are free from computer 
viruses or other defects. They are provided on the basis the user assumes all responsibility for loss, damage or 
consequence resulting directly or indirectly from their use, whether caused by the negligence of the sender or not 

 

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
Sent: Monday, 28 October 2019 11:55 AM
To: Jason Ford; Grace Gordon
Subject: Merriman caretaker possition

Dear Jason and Grace, 
 
Unfortunately we did not receive any interest in the Caretaker position for Merriman station.  I am quite surprised 
that I did not even receive one application or enquiry.   
 
As you know, it was my intent to engage with the wider community in order to recruit a caretaker who can fulfil all 
the requirements of the role and who is to recruit the best available candidate.  With such a high unemployment 
rate in Brewarrina I thought we would get a better response.  We are going to have to rethink our strategy for 
advertising the position.  I am open to any sugestions. 
 
Please feel free to ring me and discuss. 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, 29 October 2019 3:23 PM
To: Grace Gordon
Subject: RE: Sunday 3rd November 2019  Visit to Merriman 

Grace, 
 
Yes I’ve received it.  I’ll just let Chris know and then I will reply. 
 
Richards 
 
 

From: Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 29 October 2019 3:16 PM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: Sunday 3rd November 2019 Visit to Merriman  
 
Not sure if you’ve received had problem with my computer. 
  
Grace 
  
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
  

From: Grace Gordon 
Sent: Tuesday, 29 October 2019 4:14 PM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) 
Subject: Re: Sunday 3rd November 2019 Visit to Merriman  
  
Hi Richard 
In reference to our phone conversation with you today.  The time was very fitting as I was to write to you to get 
permission to take a group of 8 TO’s and a consultant out to Merriman to look at the billabong and the river at 
Merriman.  As explained we have been participating in consultations over the past week about cultural flows for 
significant cultural places and the Billabong at Merriman was suggested as one of the sites.   
  
We were planning on being out there around 1-2pm.  So it seems its perfect timing as yourself and Chris will be in 
Brewarrina and Jason, Natalie and I will be part of the group.  It’s great timing for a face to face catch up with you 
both as well as well. 
  
I guess we therefore need endorsement from you guys for this to happen.  Please advise me asap if ok to go ahead. 
Regards 
  
Grace and Jason 
  
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Thursday, 14 November 2019 5:04 PM
To: Jason Ford; Grace Gordon
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC)
Subject: Action items from meeting held in Brewarrina on 3/11/19

Dear Jason and Grace, 
 
It was a pleasure finally meeting you both face to face.  Here are some action items from my notes, if I have missed 
anything please let me know.  The initials next to each item is the person responsible for making sure that item 
happens.  These items are not in any particular order: 

 
1. Send RJ the Murdi Paaki Regional Plan. – JF 
2. Send RJ Ngemba Community Action Plan. – GG 
3. Send GG and JF the Budget report for Merriman Station FY2018/19 showing all income and expenditure. –RJ 
4. Send GG and JF current agistment agreements for Merriman station. – RJ 
5. Send GG and JF current stock reports. – RJ 
6. Send RJ an updated Duty Statement/Position description for the caretaker role. – JF  
7. Ngemba to write a business plan for using Merriman Station as a conference facility and send it to RJ. – GG 
8. Develop a Gantt Chart which outlines timeframes and milestones that need to be achieved before ILSC will 

divest the property. – RJ 
 
If I have missed an action, or If I have put the wrong initial next to an item please let me know.   
 
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

15



1

Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Monday, 9 December 2019 3:14 PM
To: Grace Gordon; Jason Ford
Subject: Emailing: CaretakerMaintenanceOfficer_MerrimanStation_DutyStatement_Sep2019 

v1.6.docx
Attachments: CaretakerMaintenanceOfficer_MerrimanStation_DutyStatement_Sep2019 v1.6.docx

   
Your message is ready to be sent with the following file or link attachments: 
 
CaretakerMaintenanceOfficer_MerrimanStation_DutyStatement_Sep2019 v1.6.docx 
 
 
Note: To protect against computer viruses, e-mail programs may prevent sending or receiving certain types of file 
attachments.  Check your e-mail security settings to determine how attachments are handled. 
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Thursday, 28 January 2021 11:56 AM
To: grace.gordon13@tafensw.edu.au
Subject: FW: Transfer of Merriman Station 
Attachments: NTScorp Ltr_MerrimanJan21.pdf

Grace, 
 
As requested, a copy of the attached corro. 

Regard 
 
Rich 
 

From: Christopher Martin (ILSC) <Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, 22 January 2021 4:47 PM 
To: Matilda Vaughan <mvaughan@ntscorp.com.au> 
Cc: Isobel Brinin <ibrinin@ntscorp.com.au>; Mishka Holt <mholt@ntscorp.com.au>; Mark Denning (ILSC) 
<mark.denning@ilsc.gov.au>; Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Transfer of Merriman Station  
 
Hello Matilda, 
 
Please find attached response from the ILSC.  
 

Christopher Martin | Operations Manager | Indigenous Land and Sea Corporation 
Brisbane Office  |  www.ilsc.gov.au  
P: 07 3854 4656 | M: 0405 061 673 | E: Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au | Freecall: 1800 818 490 

    

    

From: Mark Denning (ILSC) <mark.denning@ilsc.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 18 January 2021 9:23 AM 
To: Matilda Vaughan <mvaughan@ntscorp.com.au>; Christopher Martin (ILSC) <Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au> 
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Cc: Isobel Brinin <ibrinin@ntscorp.com.au>; Mishka Holt <mholt@ntscorp.com.au> 
Subject: RE: Transfer of Merriman Station  
 
Hi Tilly 
 
Thanks for your email. Well look to get a response back to you this week. 
 
Regards Mark  
 

Mark Denning | Eastern Divisional Manager | Indigenous Land and Sea Corporation 
Brisbane Office  |  www.ilsc.gov.au  
P: 07 3854 4665 | M: 0438 872 398 | E: mark.denning@ilsc.gov.au | Freecall: 1800 818 490 

    

    

From: Matilda Vaughan <mvaughan@ntscorp.com.au>  
Sent: Monday, January 18, 2021 9:01 AM 
To: Mark Denning (ILSC) <mark.denning@ilsc.gov.au>; Christopher Martin (ILSC) <Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au> 
Cc: Isobel Brinin <ibrinin@ntscorp.com.au>; Mishka Holt <mholt@ntscorp.com.au> 
Subject: RE: Transfer of Merriman Station  
 
Hi Mark,  
Happy New Year and I hope you have had a wonderful break.  
Please can you provide an indication of when we can expect a response on the below matter.  
Many thanks,  
Tilly 
 
Tilly Vaughan | Law Graduate 
 

 
 
NTSCORP proudly acknowledge that our office is situated on the country  
of the Gadigal People of the Dharug Nation. We also acknowledge and  
pay our respect to their Elders past and present. 

I’m working from home.  The best way to contact me is on my mobile or by email. 

t 61 2 9310 3188 | m 0450 370 933 
e mvaughan@ntscorp.com.au | w www.ntscorp.com.au  
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Level 1, 44-70 Rosehill Street, Redfern, NSW 2016 Australia 
   

 
 

Caution: This message is intended only for the addressee. It is confidential and may be legally privileged.  
If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, or distribution is prohibited and may be unlawful. 
By opening any attachment, you agree that NTSCORP Limited (NTSCORP) will not be liable for any loss resulting 
from viruses or other defects. Any views in this message are those of the individual sender, except where the 
sender expressly and with authority, states them to be the views of NTSCORP. 
Please consider the environment before printing this email 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Mark Denning (ILSC) <mark.denning@ilsc.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, 21 December 2020 12:21 PM 
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
 
Thank you for the correspondence. We will review and respond in due course. 
 
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
Sent: Friday, December 18, 2020 10:00 AM 
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To: Mark Denning (ILSC) <mark.denning@ilsc.gov.au> 
Cc: Isobel Brinin <ibrinin@ntscorp.com.au>; Mishka Holt <mholt@ntscorp.com.au> 
Subject: Transfer of Merriman Station  
 
Hi Mark,  
I hope this finds you well.  
Please see attached. 
Kind regards,  
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
Sent: Thursday, 28 January 2021 2:17 PM
To: 'Grace Gordon'
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC)
Subject: NCWP information session at Merriman station

Hello Grace, 
 
Welcome back from holidays, I am glad that you had a good break over Christmas.   
 
During our phone conversation today we discussed the next step regarding the future of Merriman station.  As per 
the letter sent to you form the ILSC on 03 November 2020, it is requested that the NCWP hold an information 
session at Merriman Station.  This session will give the NCWP the opportunity to present an overview on the 
processes undertaken into the development of the future land use management plan and allow other stakeholders 
to express their views and aspirations.   
 
I understand that due to work commitment you cannot hold this session until March.  Can you please let me know 
as soon as a date is selected as the ILSC is very keen to progress this without delay.   
 
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
Sent: Thursday, 6 February 2020 11:30 AM
To: 'Jason Ford'; 'Grace Gordon'
Subject: Gantt Chart towards divestment
Attachments: Merriman Gantt chart for divestment v1.0.xlsx

Jason and Grace, 
 
I’ve started on the Gantt chart and have attached a draft.  There are several line items on the draft that aren’t 
applicable, these are simply to make sure the formatting and chart are working.  Have a think about major actions 
and events that  
 
Please have a look and give feedback as required. 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, 6 February 2020 1:43 PM
To: 'Jason Ford'; 'Grace Gordon'
Subject: Guidance material, some direction towards divestment 

Jason and Grace, 
 
I thought you might find this table interesting.  I highlights some of the key considerations that must be addressed 
before the ILSC can divest a property.  I know its early days and we haven’t even made it to lease yet but a lot of the 
considerations for lease are the same for divestment.  If you would me to explain this table further please don’t 
hesitate to contact me. 
 
                                Divestment Criteria Definitions Guide  

Criteria What do we mean? Key considerations 

Opportunity 
and 

Outcomes 

 
Does divestment present 
an opportunity to achieve 
outcomes in line with ILSC 

purpose? 

To what extent is the asset (including maintenance/condition of infrastructure) fit for purpose to deliver the proposed 
activity and outcomes? 
Is there a plan to guide the future of the project? If yes, how well does it support the delivery of key activities and 
achievement of proposed outcomes? 
To what extent will the outcomes produced by the project be sustained after the ILSC’s assistance is c
How well has the proponent ensured broader access to benefits associated with the property?
Are there any concerns regarding land use in relation to tenure, consent, statutory requirements, environmental, 
climate change and/or WHS? If so, is there a plan in places to address these? 
Are there any cultural heritage, Native Title or Traditional Owner considerations?  

Project 
Viability 

Will the project be 
viable/sustainable beyond 

ILSC funding to meet its 
ongoing requirements 

and therefore deliver on 
proposed outcomes? 

To what extent has the proponent demonstrated capacity to meet its landholding costs? 
Is there sufficient funding/income to cover existing and future activity expenditure requirements?
Have detailed cash flows/income forecasts been provided? Are the assumptions reasonable (including property
risks)? 
If this is not a new activity/business, what is its recent financial performance (profits/losses)?
Given the complexity of the project is sensitivity analysis required? 
Are there relationships in place that support viability of the property e.g. investment/funding, sub
sale etc 

Capability 

Does the proponent 
demonstrate the ability to 

own and manage the 
property and report back 

on project outcomes? 

To what extent has the proponent demonstrated leadership stability, succession planning and other evidence of good 
governance? 
Is there a stable and active board that demonstrates compliance with their regulatory 
responsibilities?                                                                                                   Is the board suitably qualified to oversee the 
project?   
Is the corporate/governance structure clear? E.g. entity type, subsidiaries, funding streams, parent/child companies?
To what extent has the proponent demonstrated capability to manage the property in accordance with sound 
environmental management practices? 
To what extent did the proponent deliver on contract milestones and the planned purpose and outcomes throughout 
the lease period? 
How well were the risks identified in the project and adequately managed? 
To what extent does the project team (core staff, consultants, project partners and/or contractors) have the expertise 
and experience to deliver the proposed project/activity?           
Is there a need for a capability partner for this project? 

Financial 
Health 

 

Does the proponent 
demonstrate the ability to 
maintain sound financial 

performance and position 
over the long-term? 

What type of organisation is it? Aboriginal corporation, not-for-profit, private company, partnership?
To what extent are the proponent’s financial management processes and controls adequate?
To what extent are core funding sources secure? What trends are evident from the proponent’s financial
consistent profits or losses; has their equity grown or eroded over time; what liabilities do they have; and is their 
current funding/income secure? Are there any key risks or issues in the following areas:  
1. Previous financial risks, including Auditor’s opinions of financials, regulator non-compliance/special administration? 
2. Liquidity, financing, revenue or profit risk 
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
Sent: Thursday, 6 February 2020 5:28 PM
To: 'Jason Ford'; 'Grace Gordon'
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC)
Subject: Agistment agreements - Merriman

Grace and Jason, 
 
I’ve checked our contract systems re: agistment agreements etc. Currently we do not have any contracted agistment 
agreements, the contract we have has expired and we are now operating on a month-to-month agreement.  The 
positive of this is that we are not locked into any long term commitments and essentially have a blank canvas for 
future agreements.  We can discuss this further. 
 
The current stock numbers reported is 300 head of sheep and the caretaker has confirmed that this number is 
accurate.  These numbers are very low because of the current drought.  The latest (2014) estimated carrying 
capacity for Merryman is 1.6ha per Dry Sheep Equivalent (DSE) which equates to 10,500 DSE overall however it is 
uncertain when numbers this high will be possible. 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, 12 February 2020 2:43 PM
To: 'Jason Ford'; 'Grace Gordon'
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC)
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement with correct state NSW

Jason, 
 
I forgot to mention; when people enquire about any of the ILSC positions I bring to their attention that the ILSC will 
conduct a criminal history check and that they will be required to pass a medical assessment.  Can you mention 
these two things tomorrow please. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Wednesday, 12 February 2020 2:15 PM 
To: Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>; Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC) <Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement with correct state NSW 
 
Jason, 
 
Just to clarify our phone conversation today;  You are going to Brewarrina tomorrow and will be meeting with a 
possible candidate.  You are going to encourage him to apply.    
 
From my point of view this recruitment process has been dragging on too long and it has taken up alot of time which 
I cannot spare.  Applications closed last week and I am now in a position where I have a to appoint a caretaker 
asap.  I will consider his application if I have received it by 09:00 Friday 14/2/2020, after this I won’t be able to 
accept his application and I will be moving forward to interviews. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 
 

From: Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 12 February 2020 12:46 PM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement with correct state NSW 
 
Hi Richard  
 
 
I had a call from another traditional owner he was trying to put in a application but was having trouble with his job 
provider.  
 
I will ring him today and see were he is up to. 
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From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au>  
Sent: Wednesday, 12 February 2020 12:38 PM 
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
 
I have received only one application for the casual Merriman Caretaker position.  The applicant is , 
he meets the criteria and looks like he would be well suited for the position.   To follow due process I would like to 
interview  as soon as possible, I intend to do this over the phone.  I have a fair bit of R&M that needs to be 
completed before the end of financial year so I need to wrap this up quickly.  Are either of you available to be 
involved in an interview in the near future?  I would like an answer by Friday lunchtime if possible. 
 
I have attached a copy of  application. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, 7 October 2019 6:58 AM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement with correct state NSW 
 
Hi Richard 
  
Yes advertise where ever you can. 
  
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
  

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) 
Sent: Friday, 4 October 2019 9:35 AM 

27



3

To: Grace Gordon 
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement with correct state NSW 
  
Good morning Grace, 
  
Yes, I did have a little laugh.  Obviously it was my mistake, but we all missed it so I don’t feel as bad.  Anyway its 
fixed now. 
  
Are you going to circulate it via the Murdi Paaki network so that we can make the wider community aware of the 
position? 
  
Regards 
  
Richard 
  

From: Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au>  
Sent: Friday, 4 October 2019 7:47 AM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement with correct state NSW 
  
Thanks Richard 
  
We’re not very good proof readers are we. 
  
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
  

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) 
Sent: Thursday, 3 October 2019 2:27 PM 
To: Grace Gordon; Jason Ford 
Subject: RE: Merriman Caretaker/maintenance officer Duty Statement with correct state NSW 
  
Grace and Jason, 
  
Please find a copy of the duty statement with the correct state on it.  We have all been looking at the same 
document and none of us recognised that the state was “Northern Territory”.   Its now be changed to New South 
Wales. 
  
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
Sent: Thursday, 13 February 2020 1:51 PM
To: 'Jason Ford'; 'Grace Gordon'
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC)
Subject: RE: Updated Job Description - Merriman 

Dear Grace and Jason, 
 
Just a reminder that I need a copy of the email or a list of names for any people you have sent the Merriman 
Caretaker JD too.   
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Tuesday, 21 January 2020 3:03 PM 
To: 'Jason Ford' <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>; 'Grace Gordon' <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC) <Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Updated Job Description - Merriman  
 
Dear Grace,  
 
Chris has told me that you have approved the current Duty Statement over the phone.  I will now send it out 
through various networks with a closing date of 07/02/2020. 
Could you please CC me in any emails that are sent regarding the position.   
 
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
Sent: Monday, 13 January 2020 2:28 PM 
To: 'Jason Ford' <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>; 'Grace Gordon' <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
Subject: RE: Updated Job Description - Merriman  
 
Dear Jason and Grace, 
 
Happy new year, I hope you had a good break over Christmas. 
 
Here is the most up to date JD for Merriman.  Please take a moment to read it and provide any necessary 
feedback.  I’m looking at advertising this by Monday next week. 
 
Regards 
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ichard Johnston | Project Advisor | Indigenous Land and Sea Corporation 
Brisbane Office  |  www.ilsc.gov.au  
P: 07 3854 4668 | M: 0498 101 977 | E: Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au | Freecall: 1800 818 490 

    

 
 

 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Thursday, 12 December 2019 4:42 PM 
To: Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>; Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
Subject: Updated Job Description - Merriman  
 
Dear Grace and Jason, 
 
Here is the JD for the Merriman station Maintenance Officer/Caretaker position.  I haven’t made any alteration since 
we updated it together over the phone.  I approached Chris regarding putting you both down as points of contact on 
the advertisement however we are not allowed to because it may be perceived that you are employees of ILSC.  I 
think it is a good idea that possible candidates for the position talk to one or both of you so when you email it out to 
people you can suggest (in the email) that they can contact you for further information.  Any questions regarding 
the ILSC should be directed to me.  I think together we can get the relevant information out. 
 
I’ve also requested that I travel to Merriman for a potential open day where candidates can see the property first 
hand.  I am willing to support this however I could not get approval to travel to Merriman.  Let me know if you 
would like me to arrange with Jamie a date and time when people can visit the property. 
 
 
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
Sent: Monday, 16 March 2020 12:20 PM
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Subject: Requested Documents
Attachments: Brewarrina CAP 2019 FINAL 1.pdf

Hi Richard  
 
 
I have attached a copy of the Ngemba Community Action Plan and also pasted the link to the Murdi Paaki Regional 
Plan as I said I would. 
 
Regards  
 
 
Jason Ford 
Project Coordinator 
Murdi Paaki Services  
0455 367 680 
 
http://www.mpra.com.au/uploads/documents/mpra_regional_plan_fin_mps.pdf 
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Thursday, 2 April 2020 5:43 PM
To: Jason Ford
Cc: Des Jones
Subject: RE: Ilsc properties / Isolation area

Jason, 
 
I have forwarded your enquiry to the ILSC Chairpersons EA. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 

From: Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>  
Sent: Thursday, 2 April 2020 3:11 PM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Cc: Des Jones <des.jones@mpra.com.au> 
Subject: Re: Ilsc properties / Isolation area 
 
Good afternoon Richard  
 
I have been asked to see if you could provide MPRA chairperson with contact details for Roy Ah see he is a board 
member of ILSC. He would like to contact him asap. 
 
Could you please forward through details to asap.  
 
 
Regards  
 
Jason Ford 
 
 
 
Sent from my Samsung Galaxy J3 2016 on the Telstra Mobile Network 
 
 
-------- Original message -------- 
From: "Richard Johnston (ILSC)" <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au>  
Date: 2/04/2020 3:52 pm (GMT+10:00)  
To: Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>  
Subject: RE: Ilsc properties / Isolation area  
 
Hello Jason, 
  
Thank you for your enquiry.  We have also have had enquiries from the Brewarrina LALC and the Local Emergency 
Local Management Committee (LEMC) regarding Merriman.  It appears that the LEMC is coordinating operations in 
that area, is MPRA  in communication with the LEMC?   
  
We are willing to assist in a coordinated effort and have taker the caretaker to make sure the facility is ready. 
  
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
Sent: Thursday, 2 April 2020 7:36 AM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Cc: Des Jones <des.jones@mpra.com.au> 
Subject: Ilsc properties / Isolation area 
  
Hi Richard  
  
  
Hope all is well , thanks for the chat the other day in regards to the use of ILSC properties as a optional isolation area 
for vunerable families in the indigenous communities. 
  
 I am writing to you as a directive from MPRA chairperson Des Jones requesting that all properties across NSW be 
set aside as Isolation areas if needed by vunrable communities. Could please inform us of your strategies for these 
properties during Covid 19 ?  
  
Also Can you contact NCARA and MPRA  chairperson Des Jones to discuss further the options you are considering for 
these properties as a response during Covid 19. 
  
Look forward to hearing back from you. I have listed Des Jones contact details below. 
  
  
Des Jones 0439 931 769 
  
  
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
Sent: Wednesday, 15 April 2020 12:46 PM
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Subject: RE: Media Release - Assistance Packages to help Aboriginal Communities Impacted 

by COVID-19

Thanks Richard hope you are all safe up your way. 
  
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
  

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) 
Sent: Tuesday, 14 April 2020 1:40 PM 
To: Jason Ford; Grace Gordon 
Subject: FW: Media Release - Assistance Packages to help Aboriginal Communities Impacted by COVID-19 
  
FYI.  You probably already know about this but sending it just incase. 
  

From: Media <media@alc.org.au>  
Sent: Tuesday, 14 April 2020 6:55 AM 
To: Tim Stevenson <tim.stevenson@alc.org.au> 
Subject: Media Release - Assistance Packages to help Aboriginal Communities Impacted by COVID-19 
  

 

View this email in your browser  
  

 

To help protect you r priv acy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 

 

14 April 2020 

Assistance Packages to help 

Aboriginal Communities Impacted by COVID-19  

Packages containing essential items like non-perishable foods and hygiene 

supplies will be provided to remote Aboriginal communities impacted by COVID-

19 measures as part of a coordinated assistance effort by the NSW Government 

and NSW Aboriginal Land Council (NSWALC). 

 

Aboriginal Affairs NSW Head Lil Gordon said the first tranche of packages - 

approximately 500 boxes - will commence delivery over the next week and would 

make an immediate impact to remote communities, where the nearest shops 

could be many kilometres away. 
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“We know that COVID-19 is impacting everyone across NSW, but we are also 

aware that there is an acute need in remote Aboriginal communities where 

access to basic food and hygiene supplies is challenging,” Ms Gordon said. 

 

“We are working closely with a specially established Aboriginal Leadership 

Group to hear first-hand the challenges our communities are facing at this time 

and collaborate with our NSW Government partners to coordinate support and 

solutions to meet these challenges.” 

 

Aboriginal Affairs NSW and Office of Emergency Management are working with 

the NSWALC to identify residents most in need and arrange the deliveries. 

Aboriginal people over 60 with Healthcare Concession Cards, who are living in 

communities particularly at risk of food security issues arising from COVID-19 

measures, are eligible. 

 

The partnership between NSW Government and NSWALC will continue to 

address critical food needs whilst these communities are being impacted by 

COVID19. 

 

NSW ALC Chairperson Anne Dennis said the packages would provide some 

rapid relief to remote vulnerable Aboriginal communities. 

 

“We’re working with local Aboriginal communities to ensure those most at risk 

and those most in need are delivered the food and hygiene packages, especially 

the elderly, frail, disabled and disadvantaged. By NSWALC partnering with the 

NSW Government, we’re able to give some meaningful assistance to the most 

at need in our most vulnerable communities,” Ms Dennis said. 

 

“We are focusing on our Elders first and foremost, as they are our custodians of 

culture and truth, but there are more packages available and we encourage those 

vulnerable individuals in isolated communities to get in touch and find out if they 

can register for assistance.” 
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The assistance packages are part of a broader suite of tailored activities being 

undertaken by the NSW Government to support remote and vulnerable 

Aboriginal communities during this period. 

 

More information, including details on how to register for the assistance package, 

is available at the NSWALC website – www.alc.org.au and FACEBOOK PAGE 

or by calling a new hotline on 1800 476 777, from 7am Tuesday 14 April 2020. 
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Tuesday, 26 May 2020 1:49 PM
To: 'Jason Ford'; 'Grace Gordon'
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC)
Subject: RE: Action items from meeting held in Brewarrina on 3/11/19

Jason, 
 
It was great to have a phone call from you today regarding the work ahead of us.  As discussed, send through all the 
low hanging fruit first and then tackle the more difficult issues.  It doesn’t have to be all in one email. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard   
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Friday, 22 May 2020 12:54 PM 
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
 
It has now been six months since our face to face meeting in Brewarrina on the 3rd of November 2019.  During that 
meeting we agreed that clear and concise communication was required to ensure both parties understand their 
responsibilities, their required actions and to provide a time for each completed action.  I have outlined some items 
still outstanding from my email sent on the 14 November 2019 and below this there are other items that need to be 
addressed prior to consideration of a lease for Merriman Station.   
 

Outstanding from November 2019 
1. Send RJ the Murdi Paaki Regional Plan. – JF 
2. Send RJ Ngemba Community Action Plan. – GG 
3. Ngemba to write a business plan for using Merriman Station as a conference facility and send it to RJ. – 

GG 
Additional Items 

1. A copy of the community engagement records including dates, locations, advertisement, attendance 
record, and meeting minutes that relate to the development of the Merriman Future Land Use 
Management Plan (FLUMP) or other use of this property.  

2. A outline of the entity that will enter into a lease with the ILSC for Merriman Station. This is to include the 
structure, constitution, organisational goals, membership eligibility requirements, membership rules, 
Chairperson/s and Directors. 

3. An outline of the election process for all elected positions within the entity. 
4. Any minutes or notes regarding implementation of the FLUMP since NWP confirmed finalisation of the 

plan 27 September 2019 
5. Details of any additional aspirations regarding the future use of Merriman that were not addressed in the 

FLUMP that the NWP would like the ILSC consider prior to the development of a lease. 
Completed 
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1. BUDGET SENT - Send GG and JF the Budget report for Merriman Station FY2018/19 showing all income 
and expenditure. – RJ  

2. NO CURRENT CONTRACT - Send GG and JF current agistment agreements for Merriman station. – RJ 
3. STOCK <300 SHEEP -Send GG and JF current stock reports. – RJ 
4. DRAFTED - Develop a Gantt Chart which outlines timeframes and milestones that need to be achieved 

before ILSC will divest the property. – RJ 
 
Prior to the consideration of the ILSC leasing Merriman Station to an approved entity, I require a response 
addressing the above items by 30 May 2020.  Merriman is a considerable asset and in consideration of leasing this 
facility requires due diligence to ensure that the asset will be protected and managed successfully. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Wednesday, 12 February 2020 10:48 AM 
To: 'Jason Ford' <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>; 'Grace Gordon' <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC) <Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Action items from meeting held in Brewarrina on 3/11/19 
 
Good morning Grace and Jason, 
 
I’m following up on our action plan from 14 November 2019.  Can you please give me an update on any progress or 
new items to add below: 
 

1. Send RJ the Murdi Paaki Regional Plan. – JF 
2. Send RJ Ngemba Community Action Plan. – GG 
3. Ngemba to write a business plan for using Merriman Station as a conference facility and send it to RJ. – GG 

 
COMPLETED: 

4. BUDGET SENT - Send GG and JF the Budget report for Merriman Station FY2018/19 showing all income and 
expenditure. – RJ  

5. NO CURRENT CONTRACT - Send GG and JF current agistment agreements for Merriman station. – RJ 
6. STOCK <300 SHEEP -Send GG and JF current stock reports. – RJ 
7. PD ADVERTISED - Send RJ an updated Duty Statement/Position description for the caretaker role. – JF  
8. DRAFTED - Develop a Gantt Chart which outlines timeframes and milestones that need to be achieved 

before ILSC will divest the property. – RJ 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Thursday, 28 November 2019 2:28 PM 
To: Jason Ford <jason.ford@mpra.com.au>; Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
Subject: RE: Action items from meeting held in Brewarrina on 3/11/19 
 
Dear Jason and Grace, 
 
I hope you are both doing well.  I’ve attached a spreadsheet which shows the income and expenditure associated 
with running Merriman station for the 2018/19 FY.  This does not include the wages paid for the caretaker. 
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As it stands, at this moment in time, Merriman returns a $12,450 surplus, keeping in mind that there is very little 
activity on the property apart from the agistment.  I am working on getting the exact stock numbers for each quarter 
and I will forward these to you as soon as I get them. 
 
Have you had a chance to update the duty statement as per our discussion in Brewarrina on 03 November? 
 
Please contact me any time if you wish to discuss. 
 
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
Sent: Saturday, 20 June 2020 1:49 PM
To: 'Jason Ford'; 'Grace Gordon'
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC)
Subject: RFS training at Merriman station 25-26 June

Jason and Grace, 
 
FYI The Brewarrina an Bourke RFS will be using the Merriman accommodation to conduct a 2 day training activity on 
25-26 June 2020.  They will not be actually lighting any fires.   
 
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
Sent: Monday, 22 June 2020 6:51 PM
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Subject: RE: RFS training at Merriman station 25-26 June

Thanks Richard that fine. 
 
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

Subject: Face to Face catch up
Location: Merriman Station

Start: Wed 22/07/20 9:00 AM
End: Wed 22/07/20 10:00 AM
Show Time As: Tentative

Recurrence: (none)

Meeting Status: Not yet responded

Organizer: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Required Attendees: Grace Gordon; 'Jason Ford'; Christopher Martin (ILSC)

Chris will be attending via phone. 
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au>
Sent: Monday, 24 August 2020 4:39 PM
To: Mark Denning (ILSC); Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Subject: RE: Phone call today
Attachments: mpra_regional_plan_fin_mps.pdf; Ngemba CAP 2019 FINAL 28.11.19.pdf

Good afternoon Richard 
I am sending through to you today a copy of the MPRA Regional Plan and the Ngemba Community Working Party 
Action Plan.  I’ve noticed in you in completed tasks that you have not received these to date. Jason said he has sent 
these previously but it seems you say they haven’t been received. I am forwarding copies to yourself, Mark and Chris 
in an attachment to this email.  The MPRA is a very lengthy document and takes a while to download. Please let me 
know if you have difficulty with the downloads.  Still working on the other outstanding documents that you require.   
Regards  
 
Grace 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC) 
Sent: Friday, 21 August 2020 2:48 PM 
To: Grace Gordon 
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC) 
Subject: Re: Phone call today 
 
Dear Grace, 
 
Thank you for making contact via phone today regarding the future use of Merriman station.   
 
In our conversation today you expressed concern that during the Future Land Use management Plan (FLUMP) 
consultation process that the NCWP presented SSBS several aspirations and goals that were not included in the final 
Report.  I have read several emails from Andrew McMahon requesting feedback from NCWP regarding the draft 
FLUMP between 19/8/19 and 27/9/19 which received no response.  On 27/9/19 Andrew circulated the final report 
stating that because he had not heard from NCWP that he assumed NCWP was happy with the content.  Did the 
NCWP respond to this email?  If so please forward that response to me.   
 
Could you also forward me a copy of the correspondence between NCWP and SSBS during the consultation process 
that explained your aspirations and goals for Merriman, specifically the ones that were not included in the FLUMP. 
 
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

From: Jason Ford <jford3757@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, 3 September 2020 1:47 PM
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Subject: Re: test email
Attachments: 20200903_133841.jpg

 
On Thu, 3 Sep 2020, 1:41 pm Jason Ford, <jford3757@gmail.com> wrote: 
Hi Richard  
 
 
Please find attached NGEMBA CWP response to action items requested  
 
 
Regards  
 
Jason Ford 
 
On Thu, 3 Sep 2020, 1:28 pm Richard Johnston (ILSC), <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> wrote: 

Jason, 

  

Thank you for making contact via phone and letting me know your new email address.  I look forward to your 
written response (this afternoon) addressing the recent letter from the Eastern Division Manager, Mark Denning. 

  

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
Sent: Thursday, 3 September 2020 1:14 PM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: Re: test email 
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Thanks Richard 

  

On Thu, 3 Sep 2020 at 13:13, Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> wrote: 

Jason, 

  

Thank you for your new email address. 

  

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

 
 
 

 
 

  

--  

Co-Chair, Ngemba Community Working Party 

Representative of the Ngemba Nation 

Brewarrina NSW 

Ph. 0456 536 683 
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Monday, 7 September 2020 1:49 PM
To: Jason Ford
Subject: RE: Letter from Grace to Mark

Hello Jason, 
 
Have you had a chance to scan the response letter from Grace?  I would be better if we received them from you are 
one document. 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 

From: Jason Ford <jford3757@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, 3 September 2020 1:50 PM 
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC) <Richard.Johnston@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject:  
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Jason Ford <jford3757@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, 26 October 2020 3:49 PM
To: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Subject: Proposal
Attachments: 2020 Merriman station draft business plan.pdf; James profile 2020.pdf; James 李乃

明简介.pdf
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Richard Johnston (ILSC)

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)
Sent: Monday, 23 November 2020 5:11 PM
To: 'Grace Gordon'
Cc: 'Jason Ford'; Christopher Martin (ILSC); Mark Denning (ILSC)
Subject: RE: Re: Future land use management plan and creation of a suitable entity to hold 

future title of Merriman Station.
Attachments: Letter_NCWP_MDenning_3_November_2020.pdf

Dear Grace, 
 
I would like to thank you and Jason for meeting with me at Brewarrina last week on Wednesday 18th of November 
2020. 
 
During our meeting we discussed the letter from the ILSC, dated the 3rd of November 2020 (see attached).  This 
letter invited the NCWP, in partnership with the ILSC, to hold an information session at Merriman Station (date TBC) 
to provide an overview on the process undertaken into the development of the Future Land Use Management Plan. 
   
From our discussions it wasn’t clear if the NCWP are intending to participate in this this event.  It is the ILSCs intent 
to allow the wider community the opportunity to have a voice regarding the lease of Merriman Station, as such we 
are still waiting for your response to the above mentioned letter and clarity of NCWPs intentions regarding the 
proposed information session. 
 
Please send your response by COB Wednesday 25th of November. 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, 3 November 2020 4:49 PM 
To: Grace Gordon <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
Cc: Jason Ford <jford3757@gmail.com>; Christopher Martin (ILSC) <Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au>; Mark Denning 
(ILSC) <mark.denning@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: Re: Future land use management plan and creation of a suitable entity to hold future title of Merriman 
Station. 
 
Dear Grace, 
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Please find attached to this email a response from Eastern Divisional Manager – Mark Denning to your letter sent to 
the ILSC on 30 August. 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, 16 February 2021 12:14 PM
To: 'Grace Gordon'
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC)
Subject: RE: NCWP information session at Merriman station

Hello Grace, 
 
Thank you for your call yesterday.  During our conversation we discussed dates for a public meeting at Merriman 
station where the NCWP can present an overview of the engagement undertaken with the wider community to form 
the basis of the FLUMP. 
 
The dates that you have indicated would be suitable to you are: 
 

 26 February 
 5, 12, 19 or 26 March 
 23 April 

 
I have discussed this with the Ops Manager and checked availability for the ILSC to attend on these dates.  The most 
suitable date for us is the 5th of March 2021.   
 
Can we lock this date in and proceed with the preparation? 
 
Regards 
 
Richard 
 
 

From: Richard Johnston (ILSC)  
Sent: Tuesday, 9 February 2021 4:40 PM 
To: 'Grace Gordon' <Grace.Gordon@mpra.com.au> 
Cc: Christopher Martin (ILSC) <Christopher.Martin@ilsc.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: NCWP information session at Merriman station 
 
Dear Grace, 
 
The progress towards leasing Merriman station has fallen a long way behind our projected schedule. The ILSC is 
ready to move forward on this project as soon as practical and would like to start organising the information session 
as discussed.   
 
If you can’t attend this session until later in March could another member of the NCWP attend as your proxy? 
 
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
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